
 NEW HANOVER COUNTY 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

 

ADDENDUM # 1 

 

 

 

From:  Lena L. Butler, Purchasing Supervisor 

To:  All Bidders 

Project:  Generator Maintenance Program-RFB # 15-0141 

Date:  May 22, 2015 

             

This addendum is being issued to answer questions received for “RFB # 15-0141-

GENERATOR MAINTENANCE PROGRAM” and is hereby made a part of said 

Request for Proposals to the same extent as though it were originally therein.   

             

Part III Specification 

3. Will bidders be allowed to survey the equipment listed in the RFB?     

The bidders will be allowed to survey the equipment.  However, this will need to be 

scheduled with Darryl Hinson 24-48 hours in advance.  Darryl can be reached by email at 

dhinson@nhcgov.com.  

 

5.  Maintenance Parts:   5.1 and 5.2 both provide requirements for parts availability 

however, one is defined in business hours and the other in hours.  What the requirement 

for each?   

Normal parts are required to be available (Air filters, oil filters, fuel filters- Parts for 

routine maintenance).  Any parts that are needed for repair will be available on an as 

needed basis.  

 

7.  Annual Maintenance:  The specification reads “AM service shall be accomplished on 

each designated machine and transfer switch, in accordance with the agreed upon 

schedule. “  When will an equipment list that includes the ATS rating and mode of 

operation be available so we know what equipment is to be included in our bids?   If an 

updated equipment list with ATS is not provided, will NHC entertain a bid deadline 

extension to allow each vendor to survey the ATS equipment?   

A list of ATS will not be available at time of bid, and bid date will not be extended.  For 

quarterly PMs, all inspections are visual, and will be the same regardless of manufacturer.  

For annual, the tests appear to be the same regardless of manufacturer.  Please state in 

your bid if this is not the case. 

Are any of the unit’s medium voltage?       

No.   The Highest voltage is 480.    

Is a complete PM on each transfer switch the service level that NHC is requesting?  Or is 
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a brief visual inspection acceptable?    

See response above.   

Are services to be performed during regular business hours or will any site require after 

hour’s performance?     

Normal PM Services will be performed during regular business hours. 

 

8. Emergency Service:  This section specifies permanently installed generators but states 

that the scope is to set genset, verify voltage, verify rotation and engage all power 

switches and breakers and check related electrical components?    This wording suggests 

the installation of a mobile unit as permanently installed equipment should operate 

automatically.    When Emergency Service for shelters is required, will NHC require the 

dispatch of a technician to each shelter?  Or can the deployment we staggered such that 

the technician(s) can rotate until all sites are in operation?  Are technicians required to 

stay at each shelter during the entire event?    With regards to the 8. Emergency Service 

section, what does NHC want included in our bids?   

Section 8 is deleted in its entirety.   

 

 9. Technical Documentation: Does NHC have the technical documentation for each site 

on hand?  Will NHC make this documentation available to the vendor?  Will NHC 

provide electronic communications software for each unit as applicable?   

The technical documentation is not kept at each site.  The documentation is stored at 

Property Management located at 200 Division Drive Wilmington, NC 28401. This 

documentation will be available upon request.  Electronic communication software will 

not be provided.  

  

10. Malfunction Reports:   Are electronic copies of malfunction and/or service reports 

and invoices acceptable?   Please clarify this statement ‘A copy of each malfunction 

report shall be presented with time and material maintained (if used outside the 

parameters of the monthly/annual charge) invoices no later than the date of subsequent 

invoice for monthly maintenance.   

Emailed/electronic copy is acceptable. 

 

10.1 Who will have the authority to sign malfunction/service reports?    Will NHC 

provide an escort that has this authority?     

Darryl Hinson has the authority to sign these reports.  He will also escort you upon 

request.  

 

Section 6: Delivery, Service, Acceptance, and Payment 

3. Invoicing:   Is NHC requesting quarterly payments for the generator maintenance costs 

that are to be bid?  Or is NHC wishing that any costs outside of the contract be added to 

this quarterly invoice?  If costs outside this contract are to be included, how will 

authorization and PO’s be issued? 

New Hanover County is requesting quarterly payments for these services. Costs outside 

of the preventative maintenance contract will be invoiced separately.    

 

Are any of the units enrolled in a load management program?    
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Yes.  Specifically at the Jail.  This is more of a load shedding program to not overload the 

system.  

When will an ATS equipment list be provided for bidding?  Will this list include the 

make, model, serial, ratings and mode of operation for each switch associated with the 

generator?    

This list will not be provided. As discussed at the pre bid meeting this will only be a 

visual check.   

Will NHC allow for vendor site surveys prior to bidding so we can obtain engine and/or 

ATS information as needed?  How will these requests be handled?   

Yes; this will need to be coordinated with Darryl Hinson 24-48 hours in advance.  

 

Attachment B:    

1. Cooling System:  What type of coolant does NHC require?  Is coolant sample 

testing required?  

The coolant required is a 50/50 mix of anti-freeze and water.  Coolant sample testing is 

not required.  This will be done on an as needed basis.  

 

2.      Fuel System:  Is fuel level limited to base \tank and/or day tank or are other tanks 

included in this requirement?  Fuel level shall be recorded in base and/or day tanks. 

 If so, what size are these tanks and are they above ground or below ground 

installations?  Is fuel sample testing required? Sizes of the tanks vary between 300-

4800 gallons. All tanks are above ground except for one at the Judicial Building. Fuel 

Sample testing is not required.  This is an as needed basis.  

3.      Oil:  Please confirm that NHC requires new oil only and will not accept 

recycled or cleaned oil.       Is oil sample testing required?  Sample oil testing is 

not required. This will be an as needed basis.  

9.   Test Transfer Switch:  Are all sites required to have their switches tested?   If a 

test function is not available on the ATS, how does NHC want this test performed? 

To what extent does NHC want the transfer switch tested?  Can these tests be 

performed during regular hours or will any sites require after hours testing?   

See transfer switch responses above. 

 

10.  Does NHC require a specific run time or test require to comply with this 

section?   The document reads “Run____ Loaded (Annual) ____ Loaded” but does 

not explain this requirement so we do not know if we are to provide a load bank to 

achieve a specified load amount on the unit and/or run the equipment for a specific 

amount of time, etc.  Please clarify. 

Run test shall be performed under normal building load at each quarterly and annual 

PM visit, for a period of not less than 30 minutes under normal operating temperature 

and not less than 30 percent of nameplate KW rating.  Load bank not required as part 

of this bid.  Run test shall be schedule at least 48 hours in advance with NHC. 

 

11.  Engine – Gas or LP:  Does NHC want the spark plugs replaced as part of the bid 
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spec or are they to be inspected only?   

Spark plugs must be removed for inspection, but replacement is not part of the bid 

price.  If upon the annual check, replacement is recommended, please bring to NHC 

attention. 

 

12.  Transfer Switch:    Is a complete PM of each ATS required?  Or does NHC want 

an ATS inspection only?  If a PM is required, can these be performed during regular 

business hours?            

Only a visual ATS inspection is required.   

 

 

Manufacture suggest changing coolant every 3 years, on your list it says this below, it 

will cost the County a lot of additional money to do this, just checking to make sure 

this is what you request? Coolant should be changed every year.  

 

Manufacture suggest air filters be changed every 3-5 years, this could also save the 

County a lot of money, just checking to make sure this is what you request? Air filters 

should be changed every year.  

 

Do you have the KW sizes for the Generac Generators? Please see attachment. 

 

 

Notes from pre-bid (that aren’t included above): 

 

 Log on to the NHC electronic reporting system is not a requirement. 

 Bid doc has hourly rate for non-PM repair services for both standard and non-

standard business hours, should this include mileage? Mileage should be 

broken out separately.   

 Fluid analysis is not included in this bid. 

 

 

 



NHC PROPERTY MANAGEMENT GENERATOR LISTING

Property Management Complex
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

G1 Property Management 200 Division Drive Generac 52280 20 KW 4304156 Propane

Mitsubishi 1.5 L

G1 Materials Building 200 Division Drive Generac 90A01109-S 30 KW 890499 Propane

GM

G1 Fleet Maintenance 200 Division Drive Generac 91A02650-S 45 KW 996999 Nat Gas

GM 5.7L

G1 Animal Control 200 Division Drive Kohler 80ROZJ 80 KW 0642363 Diesel

John Deere 6059TF002

Government Complex
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

G1-3 Parking Lot 230 Gov Center Dr Spectrum 300DSE 300 KW 0750568 Diesel

Detroit Diesel Series 60

G2-3 911 Center 230 Gov Center Dr Spectrum 300DSEB 300KW 2043544 Diesel

Detroit Diesel Series 60

G3-3 IT Department 230 Gov Center Dr. Onan DQDAC-5762615 F060940187 Diesel

Cummins QSL9-G5

G1 911 Tower 230 Gov Center Dr. Spectrum 100DSEJC 100KW 2115406 Diesel

John Deere 4045HF275

Fire Stations
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

G1 Wrightsboro Station 3515 North Kerr Ave Olympian D150P1 150KW TNAT00430 Diesel

Perkins 1006TAG1

G1 Myrtle Grove Station 5636 Carolina Beach Road Generac 5424270100 50 KW 2083786 Diesel

John Deere 5030TF270

G1 Castle Hayne Station 5311 Castle Hayne Rd. Generac 91A02646-S 45 KW 996995 Propane

GM 5.7L

G1 Station 51 3805 US Highway 421 North Spectrum 50GS60 50KW 391374 Propane

Ford LSG-875I-6005-A



G1 Main Ogden Station 7375 Market Street Onan DSFAD-4776075 F100129627 Diesel

Cummins QSB5-G3-NR3

G1 Ogden Sub-Station 8310 Sharaz Way Spectrum 45GS60 45KW 398789 Propane

Ford CSG-649I-6005-F

G1 Federal Point Station 9815 River Road Spectrum 50DSEJB 50KW 0739885 Diesel

John Deere 4045TF150

G1 Station 52 5901 Murrayville Road Onan DSHAB-7598349 B090233247 Diesel

Cummins QSL9-G2

EMS Stations
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

G1 EMS 66 Juvenile Center Dr. Generac 93A02386-S 40 KW 2007819 Propane

GM

G1 EMS 22 Kohler 70RZ262 70 KW 221238 Propane

Ford

Judicial Building
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

G1 Courthouse basement 316 Princess St. Cummins 500EDR7 500 KW 116HHW Diesel

Cummins NTA-855

G2 Complex Courtyard 316 Princess St. Spectrum 125DSEJB 125 KW 2128782 Diesel

John Deere 6068TF250

Sheriff's Office
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

G1-3 Main Complex 1 3950 Juvenile Center Dr. Spectrum 900DS4 900 KW 0731106 Diesel

DDC/MTU 16V2000

G2-3 Main Complex 2 3950 Juvenile Center Dr. Spectrum 900DS4 900 KW 0731107 Diesel

DDC/MTU 16V2000

G3-3 CSI building 3950 Juvenile Center Dr. Spectrum 100DSEJC 100 KW 2115411 Diesel

John Deere 4045HF275

Cape Fear Museum
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

G1 Museum 814 Market Street MTU On-Site Energy 25PGC6NL 25KW 302852-1-1-1208 Nat Gas

GM 3.0 L



NHC Library
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

G1 Main Library 201 Chestnut Street Generac 91A03599-S 25 KW 2436BDYNC Nat Gas

Health Department
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

G1 Health Department 2029 South 17th Street Dayton 4LM38B 20 KW 3130835 Propane

Mitsubishi 1.5L

G1 The Harbor 2029 South 17th Street Spectrum 80GS 80 KW 0640835 Propane

Ford LSG-875I-6005-A

Communication Tower Sites
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

Fleminton Tower 3405 Fredrickson Road Generac 790570200 80 KW 2092646 Diesel

Seabreeze Tower 1306 Hill Valley Walk Generac 6075970100 80 KW 2086061 Diesel

Progress Energy Tower 5700 Holly Shelter Rd. Generac 6593880100 80 KW 2088190 Diesel

Emergency Shelter Sites
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

Dorothy B Johnson 100 Mcrae Street MTU 400DSED DDC 2168896 Diesel

Noble Middle School 6520 Market Street MTU 300RXC6DT3 301303-1-1 Diesel

Trask Middle School 2900 N. College Road CAT C32 JSJ01791 Diesel

Eaton Elem. School 6701 Gordan Road MTU 400RXS6DT3 311501 Diesel

Codington Elem. School 4321 Carolina Beach Road Clarke Diesel 300D-JWMR-LAD RG6090L112229 Diesel



Environmental Management
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

Administration 3002 US Hwy 421 N Tradeswind Power Corp.TP75 75 KW 00006186 Diesel

Landfill
No. Location Name Physical Location MFR (Gen & Eng) Model (Gen & Eng) Size Gen Serial No Fuel Type

Landfill 5210 US Hwy 421 N. Briggs & Stratton 40305 20KW Propane
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